

Date: Monday, 10 June 2019

Time: 10.00 am

Venue: SY2 6ND Oswestry Room, Shirehall, Abbey Foregate, Shrewsbury, Shropshire,

Contact: Amanda Holyoak, Committee Officer

Tel: 01743 257714

Email: amanda.holyoak@shropshire.gov.uk

TO FOLLOW REPORT (S)

Minutes of the last meetings (Pages 1 - 8)
To confirm the minutes of the meetings held on 4 February 2019 and 18 March 2019.







Communities
Overview Committee

18 March 2019

2.00 pm

I	tem		
F	Public)	
l			
l			
l			

MINUTES OF THE COMMUNITIES OVERVIEW COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 18 MARCH 2019 2.00 PM - 4.00 PM

Responsible Officer: Amanda Holyoak

Email: amanda.holyoak@shropshire.gov.uk Tel: 01743 257714

Present

Councillor Cecilia Motley (Chairman) Councillors Nick Hignett (Vice Chairman), Ted Clarke, Rob Gittins, Nigel Hartin, Vivienne Parry, Keith Roberts, Leslie Winwood and Tina Woodward

42 Apologies for absence and substitutions

Councillor R Hughes

43 Disclosable Pecuniary Interests

None were declared.

44 Minutes of the Last Meeting

Members noted that the minutes of the meeting held on 4 February 2019 would be presented at the next meeting for approval.

45 Public Question Time

There were no public questions.

46 Member Question Time

There were no Member questions.

47 Community Safety Strategy

The Chair welcomed Andrew Gough, Safer Communities Team to the meeting who had been invited to attend the meeting to provide an update on emerging crime trends and highlight priorities going forward.

Page 1 1

Members were reminded that the Crime Reduction, Community Safety and Drug and Alcohol Strategy was produced every three years by the Shropshire Community Safety Partnership. The current Strategy covered the period 2017 – 2020.

During the Committee's consideration of whether the Strategy was effective, Members asked questions including:

- What data did the strategy use to determine its priorities the figures for reoffending in the Strategy were only as recent as March 2017.
- How often were the priorities reviewed?
- Why was arson not featured as a priority for the Partnership?
- Was it possible to show that reduction in support services be linked to a rise in offending and re-offending, and whether a reduction in youth services had led to more youth offending?
- Was support available to those experiencing domestic abuse who were not able to speak English?
- Was there a consistent level of rural crime and was it recognised that fear of crime in rural areas was an issue with many isolated and elderly people living alone and feeling vulnerable.
- Were there any figures on incidents of doorstep salespeople or fraudsters targeting vulnerable people?
- Was knife crime a particular problem in Shropshire?

In response, Mr Gough and his colleague explained that the period of time to record a reoffence was 12 months, and figures then took six months for the Ministry of Justice to validate. The Ministry of Justice had however changed the definition of reoffending in 2015 resulting in difficulty making comparisons but that nationally a greater proportion of prolific offenders were involved with community rehabilitation services.

The Priorities were reviewed as necessary as the Partnership recognised that during the lifetime of the Strategy issues might change and different concerns surface. It used data, as well as information and community based reports to ensure it maintained a good understanding of the issues to be addressed.

Arson was not currently prevalent enough to be featured as a priority although members noted that just one arsonist was enough to influence figures greatly.

It was very difficult to demonstrate a clear correlation between support services and reoffending as there was such a mix of support from a variety of different sources including the local authority, police, and voluntary services.

A refuge and outreach service was provided by the Council for domestic abuse and a translation service was available.

Much crime within Shropshire was defined as rural due to the nature of the county. The purchase of CCTV equipment was a good deterrent. Funding had been made available through the Police and Crime Commissioner which had helped Town and Parish Councils to purchase and update CCTV equipment.

In terms of doorstep crime and fraud, reports came through the Public Protection Team in relation to rogue traders, hawkers and harassment on the doorstep. Locality based

promotional events had been run the Public Protection Team and it was hoped to identify different types of crime or incidents and identify and prevent nuisance where it occurred.

The Committee thanked officers for the report and asked for a further update in a year's time to understand if there was a need for any change in priorities once new data was available. The Members also asked to see a draft of the new three year strategy before it was finalised and it was agreed that this should be built into the Committee's work programme.

48 Public Rights of Way

The Chair welcomed Shona Butter, Mapping and Enforcement Manager and Clare Fildes, Interim Head of Culture and Leisure to the meeting. The Committee had asked them to attend and present a report so that it could understand whether the Council had an effective process in place to ensure good maintenance of the public rights of way for which it was responsible.

Members heard that Shropshire had the third largest public rights of way network in the county at over 5,600 km. It had a statutory duty to protect and assert the network and to keep the Definitive Map and Statement under review for the entire network.

Officers explained the policies in place for the public rights of way management, which were included within the Shropshire Great Outdoors Strategy 2018 – 2028. Members noted the particular complexities of managing rights of way than more often than not ran across private land involving several different land owners.

The report set out key facts and figures relating to achievements, current issues and the Rights of Way budget. The Outdoor Partnerships Team were facing a £100,000 budget cut in 2019/20 due to the withdrawal of Public Health funding. This would be met by voluntary redundancy and ceasing to run the Shropshire Wilds Teams unless external funding could be secured. In addition, a £50,000 budget cut in 2019/20 was specifically targeted at public rights of way. Outdoor partnerships had already had a 58% cut in total budget since 2012/13 resulting in the accessibility of the Rights of Way network falling from 85% to 66% in 2018/19.

The teams were currently generating £148,000, which was contributing to staff and maintenance costs. Members heard that were around £1 million of capital works required for the maintenance of bridges and other infrastructure and a similar sum could easily be required if the council was required to respond to notices served.

The report also outlined future pressures and how the team worked successfully with very little funding through careful budget management, volunteer co-ordination, relationship building and income generation. The Team continued to explore the most efficient and effective way of managing the network.

Responding to questions from the Committee, officers explained:

- The duties of the Council in providing rights of way furniture
- How enforcement issues were dealt with on an individual basis which could be very time consuming. It was hoped to publish 1:10,000 scale maps with descriptions which would make the enforcement role easier
- How rights of way diversions were a way of generating income

- How the introduction of the Deregulation Act 2015 and cut-off date of 2026 had significant implications for claims based on historic evidence when there was already a backlog of 74 Formal applications and over 100 potential claims as a result of the Discovering Lost Ways Project
- The Council was only responsible for surfaces of rights of way.
- It was not possible to respond to enquiries within 10 days, there were over 1000 enquiries received annually and 1500 complaints.
- The team worked to raise as much income as possible to remove reliance on Council funding and had increased income from £30,000 in 2012/12 to £500,000 in 2018/19. However this had not made up for the budget halving during this period of time.
- The work of P3 teams was extremely valuable but it was getting to the point that support to volunteer groups would not be adequate

Members expressed concern about the pressures on the team and the perception of the Council in relation to these issues. The Committee asked if the 66% of Rights of Way availability was likely to drop further and heard that the Council was supposed to conduct another survey of the network this year but did not have the staff to do this. Members were concerned that this was a failure of the Council's statutory duty.

Members referred to the need to build local economies, improve the tourism offer and attract more people into the county. It appeared that the rights of way network was in peril and would impact greatly on these efforts. This also appeared to be detrimental to encouragement of healthy lifestyles and exercise to tackle obesity, mental health and other health conditions.

The Interim Head of Culture and Leisure warned against increasing budgets for rights of way at the cost of other cultural and heritage assets in the county.

The Committee thanked officers for attending the meeting and paid tribute to the efforts of the team in doing as much as they could with the resources available.

Members agreed that a report should be formulated for Cabinet highlighting the Committee's significant concerns and highlighting how budgetary cuts to the team meant it was unable to deliver statutory requirements and appeared to be contrary to the objectives of attracting more people into the county and encouraging healthy lifestyles.

49 Work Programme

The Chair reported that the Committee had been asked to consider setting up a Task and Finish Group on Youth Work to conduct a deep dive into issues around youth provision such as where it was available and where not, barriers to access, the dangers of vulnerable young people getting involved in anti-social behaviour and crime.

The Committee agreed to commission this work and the draft terms of reference were approved.

The Scrutiny Officer reported that the Community Transport Task and Finish Group would continue its work on an ad hoc basis and was keeping a watching brief in relation to impending strategy change and all aspects of passenger transport.



Communities
Overview Committee

10 June 2019

10.00 am

Item

Public

MINUTES OF THE COMMUNITIES OVERVIEW COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 4 FEBRUARY 2019 10.00 AM - 11.40 AM

Responsible Officer: Amanda Holyoak

Email: amanda.holyoak@shropshire.gov.uk Tel: 01743 257714

Present

Councillor Cecilia Motley (Chairman) Councillors Nick Hignett (Vice Chairman), Ted Clarke, Rob Gittins, Roger Hughes, Vivienne Parry, Keith Roberts and Leslie Winwood

34 Apologies for absence and substitutions

Apologies were received from Councillor Tina Woodward.

35 **Disclosable Pecuniary Interests**

Members were reminded that they must not participate in the discussion or voting on any matter in which they had a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest and should leave the room prior to the commencement of the debate.

36 Minutes of the Last Meeting

The minutes of the meeting held on 26 November 2018 were confirmed as a correct record.

37 Public Question Time

There were no public questions.

38 Member Question Time

There were no Member questions.

39 Burial Capacity In Shropshire

The Bereavement Services Manager was welcomed to the meeting and invited to present an update on progress made since he last reported to the Committee in September 2018.

The report covered:

1

- Update on responses to the survey previously issued to Town and Parish Councils
- An update on the position with regard to bringing further burial capacity on line at a number of cemeteries in the county, including: Longden Road – new section and old section; Church Pulverbatch; Minsterley; two sites in the Shrewsbury area under initial review for potential cemetery development.
- Other actions taken and progress made included a visit to the Soulton Long Barrow near Wem and further links established with local clergy and funeral directors, and the Council's ground maintenance provider being instructed to refocus resource to those cemeteries that are being used for burials to enable an improved appearance.

The following issues were raised during the Committee's discussions:

- Housing growth and increasing population in the county and an ageing population.
- The Council's Bereavement Service was well trusted by the public and earned good revenues.
- The creation of new capacity at Longden Road Cemetery had been well received.
- There had not yet been a great deal of progress on the burial offer for other faith groups, but when new capacity came on line it might be possible to sell a block for other faiths.
- Volunteers met on a fortnightly basis at Longden Road Cemetery and helped to look after the site and many rural cemeteries engaged with Caring for Gods Acre.
- How demand would be managed on the eastern side of Shropshire

The Bereavement Services Manager showed some slides to illustrate that although there was no potential for extension of Longden Road Cemetery, it had been possible to develop within it to create new burial spaces with some double depth graves. 500 new spaces would be made available over the next ten years, which gave some time to identify a new site and develop it.

Members also discussed issues around capacity of Minsterley Cemetery which could not be extended and Church Pulverbatch Cemetery, which was not popular as an alternative.

The Committee felt that it would be important to re-run the survey in the Spring to try and gain a response from Town and Parish Councils that had not responded previously. This would help identify what capacity issues were. It was also suggested that the Bereavement Services Officer work with Place Plan officers to gain a good picture of availability of cemeteries in the county.

The Chair thanked the Bereavement Services Officer for attending the meeting and it was agreed that he attend the meeting in September to provide a further update.

40 Engaging Diverse Communities

The Statutory Scrutiny Officer presented draft terms of reference and work programme for an Engaging Diverse Communities Task and Finish Group (copy attached to signed minutes).

He reminded Members that Council had agreed a motion asking for an Overview and Scrutiny Task and Finish Group to be set up to help devise a strategy for engaging with the diverse communities of the County and supporting them to be resilient. In outlining the proposed terms of reference he referred to other pieces of work linked in on Place

Plans and Rural Strategies, and the overlap with the remits of the Place, Health and Adult Social Care and People Overview Committees.

During discussion members said there was a view among town and parish councils that communication with Shropshire Council was not as good as it should be and that there was a need to understand how to improve it. They felt that the work of the Task and Finish Group would be wide ranging and lengthy, should be managed in bite size chunks and that communication should be at the core of the work. The approach of the Group would probably involve whole day workshops and regular review by the Communities Overview Committee would be necessary.

The proposed terms of reference were agreed and the Statutory Scrutiny Officer was asked to identify the lead officer for the Group.

41 Work Programme

The Committee considered proposals for its work programme and looked forward to receiving a report on public rights of way. It was agreed to progress with the Community Transport Task and Finish Group. The Engaging Diverse Communities work was likely to subsume a number of other areas and it was agreed that the Scrutiny Officer and Chair meet to update the work programme in view of this.

Signed	 	 	 	 (Chairman)
Date:				

